What's Happening on Planet Earth?

The Accountability Phase of Ascension



Steve Beckow Editor-in-Chief Golden Age of Gaia

Vancouver: Golden Age of Gaia, 2018

Table of Contents

Introduction	5	
References	7	
Who is the Cabal and What were They Doing?	8	
Who are the Illuminati?	9	
Who are the Illuminati, cabal, or New World Order?	9	
What have they done?	10	
How does the cabal look upon humanity?	10	
Claims are being made that the dark Ones planned to drastically reduce the population numbers. Are those claims true?	11	
What's the extent of the fight that's currently going on? Will the dark Forces w	in?12	
I understand they wanted to create World War III. Will nuclear war be pe		
What about the Book of Revelation - Gog, Magog, and Armageddon? Are the ancient prophecies not going to happen?	14	
What is the cabal doing to keep fear active?	15	
Why is so much kept secret?	15	
Who is above the human Illuminati top level?	15	
Can they not look to the Reptilians for advice any longer?	16	
The Activities of the Illuminati	17	
Did the cabal think it would get away with dominating the world?	18	
What did they hope to accomplish by starting so many wars?	19	
How have they managed to hide the truth for so long?	20	
Will their control of the MSM change?	21	
What will the Illuminati's Future Look Like?	23	
Will the cabal be brought to justice?	24	
What can you tell us about the sealed indictments?	26	
Where will the cabal go?	26	
How have you planned accountability and gathered evidence?	27	
What body of law have you followed in your investigations?	28	
It looks like there is no progress.	28	
What Will Happen to?	29	

	Will corrupt politicians be removed?	30
	Will there be any more false flags, like Project Bluebeam, for instance?	30
	Who will rescue us from the depleted uranium, which is a planet-killer?	31
	What will happen to the monies the deep state have accumulated after their takedown?	32
	What will happen to fossil fuels?	32
	What will happen to the wanton destructiveness of the environment?	33
	What will the future of healthcare be?	33
	What will happen to the war industries?	33
T	he Contribution of the Company of Heaven and Its Allies	34
	Who all is here?	35
	Who are the higher-dimensional councils overseeing events? What is their contribution?	35
	How do they make decisions?	36
	What is the White Brotherhood's contribution?	37
	What is the Agarthans' contribution?	38
	What galactics are here?	39
	What is their mission?	40
	Whom do the galactics report to?	40
	Will the Earth be largely destroyed? Or are you protecting us from a cataclysm that?	ı like 41
	How will you keep tabs on deep-state members?	42
	How do we know the cabal won't start a war?	43
	What is the contribution of the galactic boots-on-the-ground?	43
	What is the contribution of the Earth Allies?	44
	What is the contribution of the light workers?	45
T	he View Looking Forward	47
	What are we witnessing in these turbulent times?	48
	Is the entire political system corrupt?	48
	How will the separation between those able and those unable to ascend come about?	e 48
	How do you wish us to relate to the Illuminati or deep state?	49
	How are the rising light levels affecting the planet?	51



This portrait of George Washington crossing the Delaware was used by Q Anon, a highly-placed leaker, a day before the Dept. of Defence used it, to prove his insider bona fides

Introduction

The purpose of this book is to provide a different perspective on what's happening in our world to that given by the mainstream media, on the subject of the transition in power from the Illuminati, cabal or deep state to new and uncorrupted lightworker leadership.

The perspective I study is usually higher-dimensional and often extraterrestrial.

The information here comes from credible channeled messages originating from one of two sources: (a) sources we associate with the "afterlife" or (b) sources from what we consider "extraterrestrials." These include what I call "galactics" from other planets and dimensions and "celestials" (angels, archangels, seraphim, etc.) from even more refined dimensions.

The raw research for this book can be found at the "First Contact" database, http://goldengaiadb.com/index.php?title=First Contact

Many will not believe the sources cited here exist. That's fine. Lay down the book and take up another from the many excellent sources that provide a different perspective. Citizen journalists are doing a great job of covering events at ground level. Whistleblowers and leakers are providing more data than any but a few off us can read.

But still they cannot see behind the scenes, where the real decisions are being made. Credible channeled messages take us behind the scenes.

Here we discover who reports to whom in the Company of Heaven and its allies, what the plan is, how they proceed with creating their legal cases, what laws they follow, where the Illuminati will go, when the time of separation is, and many more subjects related to Accountability.

The fall of the Illuminati or cabal is certain, according to my sources, and it really doesn't matter what part of the picture you and I see or don't see. The carpet is being rolled up and the lights are being turned off in the buildings of the deep state, whether we're aware of it or not, whether we follow events or not. (1)

SaLuSa said five years ago that:

"We know that waiting for significant events that you expect any day now can be tedious, but you will have your day of satisfaction and excitement. You can after all see evidence around you of the changes and even more is going on that is not apparent." (2)

Indeed it has been a long wait but the operation to clean out the cabal, SaLuSa adds, has been "a massive undertaking" and included the work "to shift a whole population onto a new path, while at the same time 'moving house,' as you might say." (3)

I think it's important to give the White Hats in the military, the public service, and elsewhere a huge salute for their willingness to risk all to bring about the surrender of the Illuminati. We can give them a helping hand by going over what the galactics, celestials and terrestrial masters have said about this time - which I call the Accountability Phase of Ascension.

So far we've been going on "intel," in which misinformation and disinformation can and does arise. By the same token, our channeled informants have sometimes given us information which us boots on the ground find difficult to believe. Take what you like and leave the rest.

I'd like to acknowledge our indebtedness to the many mediums who have contributed to this record - and four in particular: Linda Dillon, Suzy Ward, Mike Quinsey, and Marilyn Raffaele. The bodies of literature that each has produced will, I'm sure, be long studied by future generations.

Footnotes

- (1) Just recently American Secretary of State Rex Tillerson laid off the entire 7th Floor of the Department of State building. They foolishly nicknamed themselves the "Shadow Government." The lights were literally turned off on the deep state. Who knew it would be that easy?
- (2) SaLuSa, Aug. 22, 2012, at http://www.treeofthegoldenlight.com/First_Contact/Channeled_Messages_by_Mike_Quinsey.htm.
- (3) SaLuSa, Aug. 5, 2011.

References

The Arcturian Group's channelings through Marilyn Raffaele can be found at http:// onenessofall.com

The Council of Love's messages through Linda Dillon can be found on the Council of Love website at http://counciloflove.com and the Golden Age of Gaia at http://goldenageofgaia.com

John Smallman's channelings of Saul can be found at https://johnsmallman.wordpress.com/

John Smallman's channelings of Jesus can be found at https://johnsmallman2.wordpress.com/

Matthew Ward's messages through Suzy Ward can be found at http://matthewbooks.com

Mike Quinsey's SaLuSa of Sirius and later channelings can be found at http://www.treeofthegoldenlight.com/First Contact/Channeled Messages by Mike Quinsey.htm.

Sheldan Nidle's Spiritual Hierarchy and Galactic Federation channelings can be found at http://paoweb.com

Dr. Sue Lie's channelings can be found at http://www.multidimensions.com/

Wes Annac's channelings can be found at http://aquariusparadigm.com.

Who is the Cabal and What were They Doing?

Who are the Illuminati?



Who are the Illuminati, cabal, or New World Order?

The Illuminati—also now known as the cabal, global elite, shadow government, One World Order, One World Government—began as a group of individuals who felt that they were the most intelligent and learned people in the world. Thus they were entitled to rule everyone else.

Over time, others with the same superior attitude were drawn into the fold of this secret society, egos grew, tempers flared, and two competing factions emerged with the same goal, world domination.

Now we fast forward to sixty-some years ago, when the Rockefeller faction that operates out of New York and Washington, DC, was expanding its tentacles far westward and into Latin America. The Rothschild faction, headquartered in London and the Vatican, saw their territorial influence meager in comparison, so they buffed up their Council of Europe by establishing the European Union, European Central Bank and euro currency.

The Union was put under the Council's flag and shares its anthem—such a duplicitous choice, Beethoven's "Ode to Joy." With the first few countries buckled in by their EU belt, so to say, the Rothschilds and their minions set off on their expansion course; they moved into the new state of Israel, then throughout the Mideast, and more recently, northern Africa and some countries formerly within the Soviet Union. (Matthew's Message, July 29, 2016, at http://matthewbooks.com.)

At one time the Illuminati was a tightly knit group with the same aim - world domination. That aim has never changed, but as one generation succeeded another and their numbers grew with marriages and other alliances, egos, greed and lust for power began to unravel the original unity.

Eventually the infighting resulted in a split into two competing factions, one in Europe and the other in the United States. The same infighting that caused that split spilled into each faction, and they splintered into smaller factions. In the United States, Bush is in one; Cheney in another (Matthew's Message, May 19, 2010.)

What have they done?

[The Illuminati] infiltrated governments, military forces, intelligence agencies, multinational corporations, law enforcement and justice systems, religious hierarchies, entertainment industry, medical and educational fields. They garnered fortunes by manipulating the global economy through stock markets, banking and lending institutions, usurious interest rates and unfair taxation.

They initiated civil wars, wars between adjoining countries, and World Wars I and II; assassinated or imprisoned opposition; formed terrorist groups; suppressed and misused technologies; controlled mainstream media and the illegal drug trade; and took over natural resources wherever they went.

The original plan also included what they have failed to do—reduce the population by several billions via nuclear weaponry, toxic pollution, and pandemics caused by laboratory-designed viruses.

All attempts toward that diabolical end have been thwarted by members of your universal family in your skies or living among you. Still, the two factions kept adding to their respective lines of dominoes and each felt that the world was coming within its grasp. (Matthew's Message, July 29, 2016, at http://matthewbooks.com.)

The start of this century again demonstrated the boldness of this illegal governance with the shock of 9/11 and the sudden rise in wars that quickly followed. The USA had become the henchman for a clique of aristocrats that were fully intent on ruling and decimating this globe. It is only a bold gathering of the Light that has diligently worked to stop them! (Sheldan Nidle, Oct. 4, 2016.)

In recent years the intense competition between the two factions, which eroded the power of each, extended to infighting within each faction, thus further weakening all areas of control. With growing distrust of each other within and between the factions, numerous futile attempts to stage another "9/11," the loosening stranglehold on world economy, and defection of lower-ranking members, the once solidly-entrenched global foundation of the Illuminati now can be likened to scattered piles of rubble. (Matthew's Message, July 27, 2008.)

How does the cabal look upon humanity?

[They look upon] most of the population [as] "useless eaters," as attributed to Henry Kissinger. (Matthew's Message, Apr. 20, 2016.)

There are those upon the earth, yes, in the collective that we call, and you call, humanity, Gaians, who generally are of the opinion that the collective humanity, individuals and groups, are like out of control children, rambunctious children that need to be reined in, directed, and basically told what to do so that things will progress in harmony and in accordance with their beliefs and opinions. That group that previously we have also called, and you have referred to them as Team Dark, it is much bigger than that, dearest Steve. It is a worldview.

It has been a perspective that is 'rein the children in, tell them what to do, direct them, keep them in school uniforms and everything will proceed – they believe – in accordance with divine plan.' ...

That group has been diminishing significantly. But, that group has always been much larger than what you have thought of as Team Dark, Cabal, Illuminati, because it has included those people that have this vision or opinion of how things work, but were never really vocal or proactive or outwardly demonstrative of that worldview.

The good news is, that population [of Team Dark] has and is diminishing rapidly. Yes, the infusion of many of the energies, but particularly the rapidity of the Porlana C is deeply influencing everybody, including, and significantly, this group. ("Transcript: Sanat Kumara on the Changes Happening to Us, An Hour With an Angel," January 26, 2017, through Linda Dillon, at http://gaog.wpengine.com/2017/02/05/transcript-sanat-kumara-changes-happening-us-hour-angel-january-26-2017/.)

Claims are being made that the dark Ones planned to drastically reduce the population numbers. Are those claims true?

There is truth in the claims that the dark Ones have always planned to drastically reduce the population numbers, but they have been severely set back through our actions. (SaLuSa, Sept. 11, 2009.)

Depopulation by any means is an Illuminati goal. (Matthew's Message, Sept. 24, 2008.)

The larger goal of the peak of darkness ... is to vastly reduce the population this force considers useless to serve them. (Matthew's Message, Dec. 31, 2003.)

Evidence of this new flu effort and other Illuminati activities to drastically reduce the population is being amassed and eventually will completely eliminate that dark group's long control through fear, ignorance and economic slavery. (Matthew's Messages, July 18, 2009.)

Shortages of corn, rice, grains, seafood and other foodstuffs being caused by any means, including the attempt to force on farmers genetically-altered seeds that produce crops without viable seeds for the next planting, are part of the dark plot to reduce the world's population; and the recent emphasis on ethanol as an alternative to gas for transportation fuel is but another part of that insidious plan. (Matthew's Message, July 4, 2008.)

The mysterious illness striking in the Ukraine and spreading beyond its borders is a continuation of the dark ones' biowarfare. After failure to produce the intended global fear and death toll with the SARS, avian flu, and swine flu/N1H1 viruses, which were neutralized by our space family's technology, the darkly-inclined ones developed a combination of strains whose virulence cannot be destroyed with the same high degree of success as with those three lesser toxic laboratory-designed viruses.

The intended pandemic and death toll will not happen. (Matthew's Message, Nov. 19, 2009.)

The Illuminati saw that vaccines could achieve one of their major goals—eliminating most of Earth's population—thus they were used to cause the diseases that the public was told they would prevent. During the past half century or so, a variety of viruses developed in Illuminati laboratories have been released to initiate a pandemic, and in previous messages we have explained why in recent years all of those attempts failed. [The August 12, 2014 message has the most comprehensive information.] (Matthew Message, March 25, 2015, via Suzy Ward, http://matthewmessages.blogspot.com/2015/03/english-message-from-matthew-march-25.html)

Just as in the previous flu situations, the technology of our universal family has neutralized the swine flu virus-laden vaccines and will continue to do so as long as the makers persist in their scheme. (Matthew's Message, July 18, 2009.)

What's the extent of the fight that's currently going on? Will the dark Forces win?

All over the world there are confrontations and battles as the dark Forces try to stem the losses they are experiencing. It will be to no avail as their power is becoming fragmented and they are losing control of the outcome of events.

Their days are numbered as their leaders are no longer able to command their supporters to achieve the outcome they planned. The end of their power and influence is in sight and there is nothing they can do to change the outcome.

Viewing it from the outside you would not know the true facts as so much is happening at the same time. However, those working for the end of hostilities and world peace are placed where they can influence what is taking place and more importantly the outcome. (Mike Quinsey, Sept. 23, 2016.)

The dark Ones had hoped to hold you back until they could completely enslave you, but it is now too late and there is no chance of their recovery. They may remain as a thorn in your sides but their influence is in decline and destined to disappear. (SaLuSa, Aug. 7, 2015.)

The dark Ones are being slowly confined but still try and prevent matters reaching the desired conclusion. However, whatever happens, their ability to interfere with or delay Ascension is becoming less and less possible. At times their actions border on desperation as the net closes upon them and they fight to the last to avoid justice. However, there is no way that they can

escape their fate [to] answer for the multitude of crimes against Humanity. (Mike Quinsey, Aug. 26, 2016.)

The Illuminati are creating their own downfall, but will never stop trying to achieve their ambition of ruling the world. They would stop at nothing to do so and like a wounded animal are at their most dangerous when their position is threatened. Rest assured that whatever they do will be to no avail, as their days are numbered and defeat is staring them in the face.

It is no wonder that so much is happening at once, but out of the chaos will come the most encouraging signs that will clearly signal the manifestation of a New Age. (Mike Quinsey, Sept. 30, 2016.)

You cannot expect to move on and take in the changes that are going to lift you up unless the rubbish has first been swept away. ... They will soon be unable to dictate your life style to you any more. (SaLuSa, July 27, 2012.)

The end-times have well and truly commenced, and you have our assurance as always that the outcome is pre-ordained. The Creator as you might say, has the last word and it is absolute Law. (Ag-agria, Feb.16, 2009.)

I understand they wanted to create World War III. Will nuclear war be permitted?

We promise you that every attempt to start another world war will fail, and we will do all we can to promote peaceful relationships. (SaLuSa, Dec. 21, 2011.)

We tell you: There will be NO nuclear war! There will be no Third World War! At most there would be a very temporary clash of the military forces commanded by the two Illuminati factions. But anything beyond that would fall within God's honoring Earth's free will choice that no more acts of death and destruction on the scale of '9/11' shall occur.

If that clash does take place, you will see troops on both sides refusing to fight in such numbers that further combat is doomed. They will see weapons failing to function, vehicles that won't move, missiles that fizzle - do not doubt that the technology of our space family can achieve this! - and even the Illuminati commanders will see the futility of continuing. (Matthew's Message, Aug. 13, 2005.)

Be assured however serious the threats are and posturing becomes, there is absolutely no way a nuclear war will be allowed.

Whilst your freewill is acknowledged, the higher powers have made it quite clear that no nuclear devices will be allowed to be used. Any attempt to do so will result in total failure and that is the

Will of God." (Mike Quinsey, Sept. 8, 2017.)

Dear ones, let us assure you that escalating rhetoric will not lead to nuclear war, and if any missiles are launched with nuclear warheads, crews in spacecraft will prevent their detonation. (Matthew's Message, Sept. 25, 2017.)

Remember, you have been told that there is not to be a world war three or a nuclear war. It has been given from on high that this will not be allowed even though those who stand to profit from it, consistently push for it.

These energies affect those of other planets as well as yours, dear ones. You are not isolated as you have been led to believe. Nuclear devices sent into space by your military, affect more than just earth and will not be allowed. The personal agenda of an unawakened military mentality will not be allowed to function as it has in the past. (The Arcturian Group, Oct. 7, 2012.)

Please remember that we will not allow nuclear weaponry on your planet. Dispense with the fear of war because there are no more energies for war. There are only energies by the cabal to make more money by creating weapons. This is the truth. ("A Message from Mira from the Pleiadian High Council through Valerie Donner, December 5, 2017." at http://goldenageofgaia.com/? p=291215.)

What about the Book of Revelation - Gog, Magog, and Armageddon? Are the ancient prophecies not going to happen?

This is an age with no ancient prophecy. There is no prophecy you can find anywhere that explains what has happened in the last few years, and no prophecy about what humanity is about to do. No prophet was able to go to the other side of the veil and bring back this information, for what you're doing on this earth has never been charted before by anyone.

How many years do you have to be in this energy before you see it, dear ones? History is not going to repeat itself any longer. What I mean is that the cycle of consistent, old energy ways is being broken.

What about the quatrains of Nostradamus? They're not happening. What about the verses of Revelation? They're not happening. What happened to that great prophecy about Armageddon? It's eight years past due, did you notice? It's not going to happen, either.

All of the drama surrounding it, with all the stories and prophesies, are going to fall on the floorit's not going to happen. So many have been waiting for this catastrophe, and it's not going to happen. (Kryon, "The Shift is Here," Oct. 20, 2008, at http://www.kryon.com/kchannel08 Chile.html.)

What is the cabal doing to keep fear active?

The "power over others" group have been working very hard to keep ... fear active by their many acts of violence. Therefore, you are called on to have great courage. ...

These members of the "power over others" appear to be escalating their efforts. However, please be aware that this escalation is due to their knowledge that they are losing control of the populace over which they have reigned on and off since the fall of Atlantis. ("Preparing For First Contact--Shelia's Story--The Arcturians through Suzanne Lie," 7-15-16, at http://suzanneliephd.blogspot.ca/2016/07/preparing-for-first-contact-shelias.html.)

Mankind is continually being bombarded with energies of fear, lack, and limitation which can make awakening difficult, especially for those new to truth. This is why we say that it is important that you limit your indulgence in the news, and things that continue to hold you in the old consciousness.

Instead, when you become aware of issues, use them to trigger an awareness of truth. "Yes, I see this, I do not deny it, but the truth is..." ("Arcturian Group Message through Marilyn Raffaele, for May 7, 2017," at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/07/arcturian-group-message-through-marilyn-raffaele-for-may-7-2017/.)

Why is so much kept secret?

We ask you to be patient and to realize what is happening behind closed doors and kept secret. (Sheldan Nidle, Aug. 25, 2015.)

There are special reasons why you do not have much awareness of [operations], as [they are] being carried out to avoid any fuss or unwanted publicity. The exact nature of our actions are best kept secret, but very soon you shall learn about what has been happening. (SaLuSa, Dec. 14, 2012.)

Who is above the human Illuminati top level?

Above the Earth human Illuminati top level are the dark souls of the reptilian civilization, some of whom are embodied as humans and living on the planet. They are working in conjunction with their dark reptilian brothers off-planet, whose goal is total domination of Earth, if not by absolute control, then absolute destruction.

The light forces of the universe, including reptilians, are in confrontation with the darkness of any civilization. What is happening on your planet is a reflection of the universal conflict, and regardless of universal progress, your beloved Earth will be freed from the clutches of darkness as she rises farther into higher vibrations where love reigns over all. (Matthew's Message, Apr. 28, 2006.)

In your ancient times ... the Annunaki allowed the people to hold them in awe because of their seeming ability to perform miracles. As you will realise not every advanced Being is necessarily spiritually advanced. (SaLuSa, Aug. 6, 2010.)

We ... understand the difficulty in believing that dark members of a civilization different from human - the reptilian civilization, some of whom are residing on the planet - are manipulating their human puppets known as the Illuminati. But be of LIGHT heart - reptilians of the light forces are there too, working hand in hand with human lightworkers to usher in the promised era of love-light and harmony. *Feel reassured by this invaluable assistance!* (Matthew's Message, April 20, 2004.)

Can they not look to the Reptilians for advice any longer?

They can no longer look to the Reptilians for advice, and are but a pale reflection of what they used to be. (SaLuSa, Oct. 17, 2012.)

The negative forces are in disarray as their Rulers off world are no longer able to support them. (Mike Quinsey, Aug. 5, 2016.)

The Activities of the Illuminati

Did the cabal think it would get away with dominating the world?

The Illuminati never thought that they would see this day you are currently in, where so many of them are forced to resign and step down from their positions of power. ("Mariara the Pleiadian: You are All Needed Crucially in the Informing of Humanity," channeled through Wes Annac, March 12, 2012, at http://aquariuschannelings.com/2012/03/12/mariara-the-pleiadian-you-are-all-needed-crucially-in-the-informing-of-humanity/.)

The controllers have finally lost control, they know it, and they are stunned.

They truly believed that nothing would change unless they ordered it, and they are now finding daily that this arrogant presumption is utterly wrong.

It is very difficult for them to understand because they have held the reins of power on Earth for so long that they believed themselves invincible. Hidden in darkness, manipulating and controlling nations, multi-national organizations, political parties, and religious establishments, they believed that no one could threaten them, let alone unseat them.

They are now realizing that their moment has come and gone, that their deceit and corruption has been uncovered and publicized, and that no one will raise a finger to support or protect them from public notoriety as their crimes against humanity are made known to all. (Jesus via John Smallman, Nov. 22, 2014.)

The enormously profitable illegal drug industry funds both factions' "black ops," including terrorist activities blamed on innocents and vast underground areas where their scientists conduct unconscionable experiments on humankind and develop spacecraft, weaponry, surveillance and weather-control systems using technology introduced by the "Little greys."

In recent years the intense competition between the two factions, which eroded the power of each, extended to infighting within each faction, thus further weakening all areas of control. With growing distrust of each other within and between the factions, numerous futile attempts to stage another "9/11," the loosening stranglehold on the world economy, and defection of lower-ranking members, the once solidly-entrenched global foundation of the Illuminati now can be likened to scattered piles of rubble. (Matthew's Message, July 27, 2008.)

What they hadn't taken into account is the light. After millennia of being held captive by the darkness that enshrouded the planet, the peoples started responding to the light beamed to Earth by spiritually-evolved civilizations.

The more enlightened they became, the more determined they were to throw off the yoke of oppression and persecution and voices for freedom grew in numbers and volume. All the while,

the intensifying light also was exposing the Illuminati's global network of corruption and ruthlessness, and their dominoes started falling. (Matthew's Message, July 29, 2016.)

What did they hope to accomplish by starting so many wars?

As you well know, war is the business of large industrial corporations and the banks that fund them and they make fortunes from the suffering of the masses. ...

Small groups of inordinately wealthy, influential, and powerful people have been in control of global economics and politics for far too long, and their reign is coming to an abrupt end. Much of the strife that is presently ongoing across the planet is as a result of their last-ditch attempts to maintain their positions of power by causing conflicts and intense suffering in as many places as possible to create fear on a vast scale.

They then hope to militarize even more of the world so that they can lock it down and continue to control you. They will not succeed! (Jesus through John Smallman, May 23, 2016.)

The most effective means whereby they have subjugated generation after generation after generation has been by exploiting every kind of difference among the peoples to create hostility and divisiveness and by starting wars. (Matthew's Message, July 27, 2008.)

Our mission has recently changed from passive roles to ones that directly engage the dark forces, and we are enforcing the edict given to your military authorities that the use of nuclear weapons is not going to be allowed. We are paving the way for a declaration of world peace, from which point the use of any weaponry will be banned. (SaLuSa, April 16, 2012.)

The old harshly competitive dog-eat-dog way of life, is on the verge of collapse. However, the good news is that humanity is waking up to the unsustainability of constant conflict and planetary despoliation, and in many places people are rising up to the challenge and taking the necessary steps to resolve conflict and reverse planetary damage through wise and thoughtful negotiation.

As a result, those callous military leaders who have for eons chosen to engage in pre-emptive wars, and their counterparts in business and politics, and even some religious leaders, no longer have a following of admiring disciples ready to continue engaging in policies that can clearly be seen to be at best unwise and at worst totally insane. (Saul, Jan. 13, 2016.)

The dark is not to be allowed to throw this realm into any form of chaos. Whether it is economic, philosophic or even a pretense to cover for another war, so far, their attempts are failing. (Sheldan Nidle, Aug. 25, 2015.)

The old, dark order desperately wants to force you back into the ways of hate, division and derision. However, their specially-constructed false flag operations have failed to work as they had previously.

We realize how difficult it is to be conscious of this violence and still remain calm. The dark has operatives who are trained in events that enforce a deep inner resentment. It is this building resentment and growing sense of powerlessness that it is hoped can finally induce what the dark deeply wants, some type of military action.

So far, you have forged a reality that uses its growing consciousness to resist a deep and angry response. This continuing delayed reaction is allowing our allies to ready a course of events that can at last alter these grave scenarios.

Every day such a violent reaction can be delayed makes it possible for new governance to appear and thoroughly change this set of unwieldy and potentially dangerous, sequences. The time for these most welcomed changes is approaching. (Sheldan Nidle, Aug. 2, 2016.)

The Galactic Federation remains close to you even if they are unseen. Since you are entering a very important period you will need their protection, as the dark Ones would think nothing of destroying large parts of the planet to try and maintain their power. (Mike Quinsey, January 28, 2016.)

If everyone on Earth who is in an environment of violence, hate, and oppression, refused to engage and instead moved away, then the violence would wind down quite rapidly as those willing to fight, or looking for a fight, would find themselves seriously short of opponents. (Saul, December 17, 2014.)

How have they managed to hide the truth for so long?

The dark Ones have largely controlled your Press and have not allowed the real news to be presented to you. (Mike Quinsey: A Message from My Higher Self, Feb. 26, 2016.)

The dark Ones have been subtle in their plan to exercise complete control over you. So much so, that few of you have even suspected that there was a plan to imprison you by taking away your rights.

Believe us, Dear Ones, it was well advanced and near to completion, with an attempt to create a situation that would have led to Martial Law and total control. (SaLuSa, Aug. 19, 2011.)

An entire, strong network of lies and half-truths has been fashioned around your society, and those who've suppressed your history will be held accountable for what they've done as humanity is subsequently informed of what they've suppressed. ("The Hathors: Karmic Acceleration, Exposure of Tyranny and Understanding Channels," channeled by Wes Annac, August 30, 2013 at http://aquariusparadigm.com.)

As you are beginning to realise, you have been fed only what the dark Ones have controlled and often it is far removed from the truth. It does at times filter through but you need to be aware of reliable sources, as some are simply set up to give out false information. ("Mike Quinsey: A Message from My Higher Self," June 10, 2016.)

The Earth is alive with secret activity but little of it reaches your ears, because the dark Ones still control the Press in spite of the fact that their power is quickly weakening. (Mike Quinsey: A Message from My Higher Self June 17, 2016.)

Your Press is restricted on what it can reveal to you which is why you read little about the wondrous and astounding finds in the Antartica. They should be on the top of the list for news, but be assured you will learn of their finds eventually. (Mike Quinsey, July 28, 2017.)

You have lived in a false paradigm for so long and not allowed to progress as was intended. You have effectively been denied progress that would have brought you a way of living some 50 years ahead of where you are now. Be assured that it will take nowhere near that period of time to catch up and plans to move you forward are already in place. (Mike Quinsey, Dec. 2, 2016.)

For humanity as they watch through the lens of their news media, it seems as though the world is about to fall into chaos and, yet, life continues keeping pace with the times. There is great resilience in the human soul, for it has seen much in its sojourn through many lifetimes and experiences and it has the ability and the deep knowledge and inner resources available within to keep on keeping on resolutely moving forward. (Hilarion, June 26-July 3, 2016.)

Will their control of the MSM change?

That situation is soon to change and then the true news will enlighten you, and where the dark Ones are concerned will shock many who have had little if any knowledge of their activities. (Mike Quinsey: A Message from My Higher Self, Feb. 26, 2016.)

You cannot fail to have noticed that dark secrets are increasingly coming to light, and as much as those involved try, they cannot hold back the truth. This period has been spoken about previously, and that which was hidden will be revealed. You could say that it is a time when the Light will leave no stone unturned.

If people take their secrets with them upon passing over it still makes no difference, as every soul has to face the truth about their life. Whatever you may think now, you cannot hide it when in the higher vibrations because as you may already know, only the truth can exist in the Light. So if you have any dark secrets, consider that it might be better to make your peace now rather than later. (SaLuSa, Feb. 20, 2015.)

There are changes being planned so that a truthful and reliable news service is available. Providing you are discerning for the time being your Internet is the best source of news, as it gives you a reliable update as to what is happening in the world. You tend to look at the West for your information and it is currently your best source. But as the truth is uncovered it will go worldwide, and ultimately all souls will become aware. (Mike Quinsey, Sept. 16, 2016.)

Before very long the news outlets will become free to report the real and truthful news that has been denied you for eons of time. (Mike Quinsey, Dec. 2, 2016.)

Already, so many souls have stepped to the forefront of the collective consciousness to offer revelations concerning the cabals, and we ask you to continue paying attention to exposures regarding the surveillance activities of the American NSA, the British GCHQ and the spy agencies of plenty of other countries; some of which haven't yet had their activities exposed. ("The Hathors: Karmic Acceleration, Exposure of Tyranny and Understanding Channels," channeled by Wes Annac, August 30, 2013 at http://aquariusparadigm.com.)

The Internet is still your best source and carries up to date news of events that are taking place. If some news seems doubtful then it probably is and should be ignored. ("Mike Quinsey: A Message from My Higher Self," June 10, 2016.)

You have an excellent web that has so many links that you can follow up on almost any subject that interests you. There are also many souls who write up on matters concerning the future events that will affect you. If you are reading this and do not have access to the web, books are available on most subjects, and of course talks are given in most localities. So hopefully you will find some link that you can use to further your interests. (Mike Quinsey, July 28, 2017.)

I am speaking to all upon Gaia. And it is time for this distraction, deception, lies, untruth, deviations, of such a magnitude that they hide the truth – it is time for this to come to an end. Now we are doing our part, and you are being uplifted as never before. ("Transcript ~ Sanat Kumara on Heavenly Blessings: Choose Love and Action, August 2, 2016," at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2016/08/16/transcript-sanat-kumara-heavenly-blessings-choose-love-action-august-2-2016/.)

What will the Illuminati's Future Look Like?

Will the cabal be brought to justice?

Money still buys them time, but will never buy them their freedom to escape justice for their crimes against you. (SaLuSa, Oct. 19, 2012.)

Continuing investigations into the dark aspect of that huge youth organization alongside pursuing the Vatican's long-time cover-up of known pedophile priests ultimately will reach the top of the Illuminati's lucrative international sex slave industry as well as reveal that the headquarters of Satanism is in the bowels of the Vatican. (Matthew's Message, April 26, 2010.)

Looking all around it is apparent that the Institutions that have held prominent places in your world, are in stages of collapse from which there is no escape. (SaLuSa, Sept. 19, 2012.)

You have much to look forward to in these coming days as more and more dominoes fall at a much greater and accelerating pace. Already, you are beginning to see the turn of fortune occurring on the financial front. This will be followed quickly by the media, where many will begin to pay for their crimes and many more will turn towards open, honest, and investigative reporting.

This, in turn, will be followed by a move to "clean house" with your political leaders and the stepping forward of those who consciously have begun to awaken within the halls of power in your many governments to set straight their role as stewards of society. (Wanderer of the Skies, March 14, 2012.)

The 'takedown' of the Illuminati is proceeding smoothly. ...

Of course again, there are constraints as to all that we can report for many reasons, one of them being that many souls of the Illuminati read the messages from us and use the news given to our disadvantage. ...

As you can see, many souls who have assumed positions of power and wealth are now resigning from such positions. This is happening as so very many souls are jumping off of the now sinking ship, and this happening is something that has been predicted by many channeled sources of information for many years of your time. ("Mariara the Pleiadian: You are All Needed Crucially in the Informing of Humanity," channeled through Wes Annac, March 12, 2012, at http://aquariuschannelings.com/2012/03/12/mariara-the-pleiadian-you-are-all-needed-crucially-in-the-informing-of-humanity/.)

The tasks in hand ... will become even easier as the dark Ones are put where they can no longer interfere. Already their influence is weakening, and together with our allies we will ensure that they cannot get back. ...

Duality is all but finished but many individuals are playing out their last game. However, as they become isolated their power is greatly diminished. (SaLuSa, Nov. 7, 2012.)

Their empire is slowly crumbling and there is no way back for them. We do however closely monitor some individuals who of their own accord still exercise authority over their minions. (SaLuSa, Aug. 22, 2012.)

Look around you and keep your eyes and ears open, as you will see evidence of the arrests that are beginning to spread around the world. (SaLuSa, July 27, 2012.)

The arrests of corrupt officials is spreading, and some are already fleeing and trying to avoid the consequences. It does not matter what steps they take to avoid justice, in reality there is nowhere to hide. (SaLuSa, Aug. 22, 2012.)

Currently arrests are occurring that will lead to that end, and also enable changes to go ahead that might otherwise have been impossible. (SaLuSa, Aug. 1, 2012.)

They have been offered a way out if they resign, but that does not mean they can get away with their crimes against Humanity. There are far greater powers than us who are involved in ensuring that justice is meted out. (SaLuSa, Feb. 20, 2012.)

You can be sure that there is nothing to worry about where the dark Ones are concerned, because we have aborted many of their attempts to cause trouble. We have contained their activities for some time now and intend to keep doing so. They are staring into the abyss of oblivion and there is no escape for them.

In the long term events will progress as you have previously been advised, so keep in mind that the Light will always be victorious over the dark Ones. ...

The war between the dark and the Light for control of the Earth is destined to soon be brought to a conclusion. The outcome has always been predictable even if momentarily the dark Ones seem to be in the ascendancy. However matters cannot be taken for granted and it needs those of the Light to focus on the right outcome. (Mike Quinsey, Nov. 25, 2016.)

Now that they realise their time is nearly up, their thoughts have turned to escaping the consequences of their acts. However, there is no realistic chance of that happening. They will find that their escape routes are being blocked, and they will suffer the consequence of their actions.

We are not referring to man's idea of retribution, but encouragement and help to return to the Light. Rarely do souls turn their back on an opportunity to change their ways, but if not they are the makers of their own destiny and their life ending. (SaLuSa, Feb. 27, 2015.)

What can you tell us about the sealed indictments?

The dark knows that a number of cases were adjudicated against them and that a grand legal force is readying to take them down. (Sheldan Nidle, Aug. 25, 2015.)

You will begin to notice more and more, that all types of corrupt practices are being investigated and the culprits are being revealed. It is the result of the upliftment in your levels of consciousness that desires a return to honesty in all dealings and transactions. There will be no hiding place as the facts will come out as part of the cleansing that is taking place. (SaLuSa, Jan. 11, 2013.)

Our associates are... preparing the final lists and formal warrants that are to be the basis for a dramatic arrest of numerous major financial figures across this globe. This global event is to finally ensure that the dark cabal is broken and unable in any way to influence what is to happen next. (Sheldan Nidle. Feb 2, 2016.)

Where will the cabal go?

Be assured that trouble makers will be removed from the planet, and placed where they can no longer interfere with the planned changes upon Earth. (Mike Quinsey, Sept. 16, 2016.)

At this time they are being removed and placed where they can no longer cause great harm to you. (Mike Quinsey, Nov. 25, 2016.)

They are to be moved to a place more in keeping with what is desired to prepare them for their alteration into fully conscious Beings of Light. (Sheldan Nidle, June 7, 2016.)

Soon you will begin to see a parade of beings leaving this planet. They have held you back for far too long. They simply cannot match the resonance of the new earth. (Mira the Pleidian, through Valerie Donner, Jan. 6,2018, at http://campaign.r20.constantcontact.com/render? m=1109452915368&ca=f09f59ba-8289-4baa-a2af-b814dfd57976.)

We cannot have the dark Ones meddling in our work, so they will have to be first removed. We already know exactly who they are and they will be shown for what they stand, and there is no way that they will escape justice. By that time there will be a free exchange of information, and the media will have become a true expression of events that take place. (SaLuSa, Feb. 18, 2011.)

As the planet continues its course into higher energy planes, ... the light is so intense that persons with dark proclivity cannot physically survive - the ones who are responsible for massive suffering no longer will be on Earth. (Matthew's Message, Aug. 11, 2011.)

Be assured that Ascension is well under way and nothing can stop the anticipated ending taking place. So ignore the actions of the Cabal who still believe that they hold power to thwart attempts

to put an end to their war against the people of Earth. Their power has already been curtailed and it will never return to the previous level. Their days are numbered and ultimately they will have no option but to surrender.

Any attempts to avoid justice will fail and they will eventually be removed from this planet. Their minions may still cause trouble, but they too will also be forced to give up their plans to take over the Earth and its population. ...

The turmoil will continue as the old energies fade away and the new ones take their place. The negative forces are in disarray as their Rulers off world are no longer able to support them. The collapse has already caused some to make plea bargaining to save their lives, and providing they accept what is offered they will be placed where they can no longer interfere in the future plans for Earth and her civilisation. (Mike Quinsey, Aug. 5, 2016.)

How have you planned accountability and gathered evidence?

Ascension is an evolutionary process, not a revolution, and the transitional stages require meticulous preparation so that all reforms are handled within legal systems that are just, and nothing is minimized or overlooked. (Matthew's Message, Dec. 5, 2010.)

Many wonder how the impending changes can be introduced without causing confusion. The answer is that planning for this time has been meticulously carried out, and subject to changes if new conditions present themselves. Backing up the plan are immense numbers of advanced Beings who will reveal themselves when the circumstances are right. They have followed your progress for eons of time. (Mike Quinsey, Sept. 9, 2016.)

Over the many years we have accumulated more than sufficient evidence to show which individuals have broken their promises to work for the people, and instead fallen for promises to get rich quick at their expense. We can therefore largely dispense with the laborious and long winded trials that there is no longer sufficient time for. However, some crimes against you are of such gravity that a few individuals will stand trial, so as to reveal the full extent of them.

As you can imagine, such Beings are those who are of the Illuminati and controlled the plans to bring about world slavery of the Human Race. Clearly with Ascension so near to manifesting they will eventually be removed, and spend their time at an appropriate level where they can reflect upon the effect they have had upon millions of Beings. All is not lost where they are concerned, but their path back to the Light will be long and arduous. (SaLuSa, Dec. 19, 2011.)

The weight of evidence against those who have corrupted the banking system is overwhelming. (SaLuSa, July 27, 2012.)

No amount of denial will change the facts that support the accounts we will give you. We also need them to substantiate the actions that are planned, when many persons in authority are removed because they have participated in criminal activities against the you. At this point our

concern is to get them out quite lawfully, and not waste time before they are replaced by those who are of the Light.

It has required great patience on your part, and soon you shall see the result of a long period of preparation to take back control from the dark Ones. A great change is in the process of taking place and whilst it is difficult to give firm indications, it would seem likely to commence within the next two months. ("Mike Quinsey: A Message from My Higher Self," May 13, 2016, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2016/05/13/mike-quinsey-message-higher-self-18-8/.)

What body of law have you followed in your investigations?

The simple application of your laws and also Universal Law. (SaLuSa, May 8, 2012.)

It looks like there is no progress.

Do not believe that there is no progress, for as we have explained before, the dense and heavy energies created by mankind through centuries lived in fear and with closed hearts must clear globally and personally in order for the energies of unconditional love to manifest. (Arcturian Group, April 9, 2017.)

Your final cycle is now playing itself out and unlike previous ones is destined to signal your success. Instead of falling to the dark influences, you are now on course to move fully into the Light. It has taken our presence and that of many Light Beings from the higher realms, to guide you safely to this important time in your evolution. You will safely reach the end-times as intended and much credit must go to those Lightworkers who came to Earth for that purpose. (Atmos, Nov. 12, 2008.)

Once [major changes] start matters will quickly change. (Mike Quinsey, Sept. 23, 2016.)

While it may look messy and chaotic, the Mother has not backed away from her Plan and neither have we. It will be done, and it will be done timely. And when I say "timely," I do not mean the infamous "soon." What I mean, sweet angel, is within a very near framework in your time and ours. ("Archangel Michael on Current Chaos & Joy," December 13, 2016, at http://counciloflove.com/2016/12/archangel-michael-on-current-chaos-joy/.)

What Will Happen to...?

Will corrupt politicians be removed?

Now that the sorting out of people who are not fit to serve you has begun, it will extend to all areas of life. Politicians are by and large unreliable and prone to break their oath to serve you the people. They are already under scrutiny and will soon be subject to removal where they have committed criminal acts.

Provisional governments will be put in place where necessary, and control will be given to those who have proved worthy of such responsibility. We do not expect much resistance to the changes, as we have the absolute proof we need to go ahead and there can be no argument about it. If necessary, we can go back in time to prove a point, so you will realise why we can be so confident. It means that we do not have to resort to force to accomplish our goals. (SaLuSa, Feb. 27, 2012.)

We are paving the way for a declaration of world peace, from which point the use of any weaponry will be banned.

As a precursor to such happenings, we need honest and trustworthy people in positions of power who will abide by such rulings. Hence, after the dark Ones are removed, we will support such appointments as we need them to get fully behind the changes. As a result you will be propelled into a new era when your rights will be restored and power returned to the people. (SaLuSa, April 16, 2012.)

Will there be any more false flags, like Project Bluebeam, for instance?

The light grid around the planet prevents any civilization with dark intentions from being anywhere near Earth. And if the bad guys try to put their own 'secret' craft in the skies and bring out some of the Greys living underground and claim it's an invasion, we can stop that charade before it gets going. (Hatonn in Matthew's Message, Oct. 10, 2010.)

The only free will they have is limited and does not allow for major destruction of any kind.

It is only the dark Ones that would entertain the idea and most likely as a "false flag" attack. cAgain do not be too concerned as we have the authority to step in if they attempt a major event.

The extent of their abilities to cause trouble has been severely limited. They have already been severely impeded in their plan to escape and leave the Earth, and now cannot do so. (Mike Quinsey." Jan. 28, 2016.)

Who will rescue us from the depleted uranium, which is a planet-killer?

What your family from other civilizations will do is tackle environmental issues that are beyond your capabilities—their technologies can dematerialize nuclear waste and depleted uranium, purify polluted rivers and seas, and restore deserts to arable condition. Also, their free energy systems are far advanced of your own, which by and large still are under Illuminati suppression. (Matthew's Message, November 23, 2013.)

Steve Beckow: Let me quickly ask two questions from a listener that I promised to ask. This listener lives in Maui, and he says, "We're getting lots of serious reports about the severity of the radiation leaked into the ocean from Fukushima that has now made its way here. I feel we're not being told the whole truth." He says that there have been tests on tuna that show high levels of radiation and graphics from NOAA showing the spreading of radiation. "Are these tests and other reports designed to put fear in people? What is the situation with alleged Fukushima radiation?"

Now, I've already told him that Hatton has said, for instance, that agencies like NOAA are not telling the whole truth, and the galactics are cleaning up radiation. But could you reassure him as well, please?

Archangel Michael: I would be pleased to reassure him. NOAA. Yes, the extent of the radiation is not truly, completely, fully disclosed. And it is not something that that we have sent alarms out over because it is being cleaned up and transmuted by your galactic and inter-galactic brothers and sisters.

So, has there been seepage into the oceans? Yes. Is it of the level that people are fearful of? No. Is it being cleaned up by your star friends? Yes. Will it have long-term effect? No, certainly because Gaia is not going to permit it. You see, Gaia has the capacity also to transmute radiation. There is natural radiation that occurs many different places and in many different forms. It is a question of balance. So, it is being attended to. ("Archangel Michael: Violence and War Cannot Continue - Part 2/2," Sept. 4, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/09/archangel-michael-violence-and-war-cannot-continue-part-22/)

SB: Anything further to say to the readers of the blog who also are interested in chemtrails?

AAM: Chemtrails are in the same category ... well, perhaps more vicious and violent, more assertive and aggressive ... as the pollution of your oceans, your lakes, your rivers. And these are being neutralized one by one by one.

SB: Right.

AAM: So know this and know that is being taken care of.

SB: I guess depleted uranium falls in that category too.

AAM: Oh, it most certainly does.

SB: If the galactics had not neutralized depleted uranium, would this planet have died?

AAM: Yes.

Now let me explain. It is not just that she would have died. It would have been that her will to continue on would not have been there.

SB: Wow, eh? That serious.

AAM: Yes, that serious. (Archangel Michael through Linda Dillon, personal reading for Steve Beckow, August 6, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/08/haarp-chemtrails-and-depleted-uranium-all-neutralized-or-gone/.)

What will happen to the monies the deep state have accumulated after their takedown?

Their control of Wall Street and European and Asian stock markets is unraveling and so is their banking empire. They won't much longer be able to hold onto their vast fortunes amassed illegally and immorally. The forces for good will obtain those and use the monies to end impoverishment. (Matthew's Message, July 27, 2008.)

This growing level of consciousness is partly responsible for the numerous alliances that are forming across your globe. Humanity is becoming aware that a different way of doing its many tasks is indeed possible. This is why there is a great need to end governmental corruption and tie it into a new currency reset and a precious metal-based financial system.

This system requires a high degree of transparency in order to succeed. Given these parameters, the new financial system is to encourage a redistribution of wealth and a means to transform poverty, homelessness and unjust taxations. This immense shift is to provide a way for each human to watch their respective levels of governance and help it truly represent them. (Sheldan Nidle, June 10, 2014.)

The financial wing of the cabal has ... fallen apart, and it will not be allowed to be resurrected in its old format. In fact as fast as they plug one hole another appears elsewhere, and in the end a new system will be the only answer.

As the old one falls apart so it is revealing the extent of malpractice and corruption that has taken place for a very long time. So do not worry about the continuing problems, because at a future date not so very far away it will change for the better. (SaLuSa, Aug. 6, 2012.)

What will happen to fossil fuels?

Expanding renewable energy forms will phase out their fossil fuel industries.

Free-energy sources they have kept under wraps will emerge. (Matthew's Message, July 27, 2008.)

What will happen to the wanton destructiveness of the environment?

Protection of the environment will end wanton destructiveness. Their unjust justice systems will be reformed, prisons-for-profit end, and control of mainstream media in nations with "free press" will meet its end, too. (Matthew's Message, July 27, 2008.)

What will the future of healthcare be?

Healthcare—a maze of global collusion involving pharmaceutical and insurance companies, vaccine and medical equipment manufacturers, and World Health Organization as well as FDA, CDC, NIH, AMA, AHA and related alphabet groups in the United States—will wend its way out of those Illuminati-owned or infiltrated organizations. Toxic therapies will be replaced by long-suppressed safe, natural remedies and proper healthcare will become available to everyone. (Matthew's Message, July 27, 2008.)

What will happen to the war industries?

Industries that make the machinery of war will produce what a cooperative, progressive civilization needs; construction companies with honorable management will rebuild destroyed cities; money formerly spent on warring will go into projects and programs that uplift and enhance life.

Some of those activities are underway, others are beginning, still others are in planning stages, and rising vibrations will be under-girding all the endeavors. You will be seeing evidence of this, but please do not expect the continued unfolding of world transformation to be free from patches of resistance. You are well prepared to deal with those as they arise and help others do the same —beloved sisters and brothers, you have earned PhD's in ingenuity, perseverance and triumphing over obstacles! (Matthew's Message, July 27, 2008.)

The Contribution of the Company of Heaven and Its Allies

Who all is here?

You have the assistance of many higher beings such as us from the Angelic realms, us from the Pleiadian realms, others from all the other star systems, Ascended Masters, and many other benevolent beings.

You have gathered from far and wide, seraphs, archangels, those from the Outer Forces, the Inner Forces. It is a gathering the magnitude of which you are just glimpsing. ("Archangel Michael: You're Now Ready to Know Who is Here," April 10, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/04/archangel-michael-youre-now-ready-to-know-who-is-here/.)

All attention is focused on Earth now as this is the staging ground for the upshifting of all elements in the universe. ("Council of Angels and Pleiadian Council via Goldenlight ~ The Global Reset of all Systems in Preparation for the Golden Age on Earth," channeled by Goldenlight, July 25, 2013 at http://thegoldenlightchannel.com.)

Who are the higher-dimensional councils overseeing events? What is their contribution?

There are powers in the higher dimensions that control events on Earth and also ensure that the wishes of the people are upheld. (Mike Quinsey, July 8, 2016.)

The highest universal council planned the Golden Age. (Matthew's Message, Aug. 11, 2011.)

Behind all that happens are the mighty ones such as the Elders who direct all creation and observe the edicts of the Creator. They operate on an unimaginable scale, holding immense power that reaches through the different Universes. (SaLuSa, Dec. 19, 2008.)

The highest Orders and Councils are one in a Brotherhood of Light and service to others is considered to be the highest act of love. (Diane of Sirius, Feb. 2, 2009.)

Mighty forces are at work, and there comes a time when the magnitude of them is even eyeopening to us. Great Beings carry out the plan of the Creator, and such concepts are perhaps a little too difficult to contemplate whilst you are still in the early days of enlightenment.

All is in a state of change and in the hands of exceptionally powerful Beings who will ensure that all action is completed in accordance with the Divine Plan. They oversee our activities and we

have complete and utter faith in them. We obey their instructions to the letter, and know we are taking the best course of action for all concerned. (SaLuSa, Aug. 8, 2011.)

The line of authority goes all the way back to God, and passes through various groups and councils of high evolution and consciousness. It finally reaches you through us and the Masters, who wait in readiness to return to Earth. (SaLuSa, March 26, 2010.)

At the 2012 Transition, responsibility for the Earth passed to the Higher Dimensional Council of Elders and the Council of Earth Keepers. These are the Light Councils that determine the direction and evolution of your planet. ("Archangel Michael: The Inevitability of Change and Deep Dreaming with Gaia......A New Communion of Light," channeled by Celia Fenn, October, 2013 at http://www.starchildglobal.com.)

As you might expect, there are Councils in the higher dimensions that control the degree to which the various rays of Light are beamed to Earth. It is a process of upliftment that gradually increases the level of vibration in your dimension. It is calculated to bring about an increase in the levels of mass consciousness, in a way that is acceptable to you and able to be drawn upon.

To increase the levels too quickly would cause discomfort to those who were ill prepared for it. The object is to return as many of you as possible to the Light, and able to be uplifted through Ascension. So you will understand that there is a grand plan being worked out, supported by great Beings of Light. (SaLuSa, April 1, 2009.)

How do they make decisions?

Although we are fully conscious Beings we consult [greater Beings of wisdom and understanding] if we are uncertain as to the best course of action. Bear in mind we are dealing with the future of planets and their civilizations, just as we are with you. It is a great responsibility and care must be taken when decisions are made. (SaLuSa, April 16, 2010.)

There may be rumors and speculation as to what is in store, but only the higher sources will be able to clearly define the details of the plan. Although it has been amended where necessary, it has generally speaking kept to its central aims which are the key requirements for your upliftment. (SaLuSa, April 9, 2010.)

Those who have planned your end times have the power and authority to do whatever is necessary to ensure completion in accordance with the end of this cycle. (Mike Quinsey, Jan. 20, 2017.)

Members of the highest council that designed the master plan of Earth's Golden Age have been observing the pace of flux in the collective consciousness, and they have agreed that the day is nearing when the presence of your celestial brotherhood must become widely known. ...

Because [the masses being deceived and remaining asleep] is not in keeping with Earth's desire for her beloved souls, the master planning council in conjunction with spiritually evolved beings

among you decided to reverse the order of two major parts of the plan. (Matthew's Message, Oct. 19, 2009.)

The 'highest council' and 'master planning council' are the same body, and the members were chosen by their respective civilizations to represent them.

Matthew says 'sort of like an intergalactic UN as far as the participants representing many different cultures, but the council was convened for planning purposes only and isn't a standing body.' (Suzy and Matthew Ward, email to Steve Beckow, Oct. 31, 2009.)

As we mentioned in previous messages, the highest universal council formerly was responsible for arrival and introduction timing and now God is in charge.

God relieved the council of the heavy responsibility of deciding when Earth's peoples are psychologically ready to see spacecrafts landing in numbers and to greet unusual looking beings. God will say GO! when the meeting can be with welcoming, not fear, and He is just as eager for that joyous occasion as are all of us who know it is coming.

God's taking the helm in this is a change from what we reported in earlier messages. Changes happen at the peak of the universe just as they do in your lives! So it is not that we give you misleading information and later have to retract it - we tell you what is known at the time of our messages, and if later a significant change is made, we report that. (Matthew's Message, Dec. 29, 2012.)

What is the White Brotherhood's contribution?

The powerful energy of souls you call ascended masters and the White Brotherhood and other light forces you don't know about has been intensifying on the planet and is available to each and every one of you. It isn't necessary that those souls embody or that you know their names. Simply ask for divine help and these emissaries of God will provide it. It may not come in the form you think you want, but it will be what you need in accordance with your soul contract. (Matthew's Message, Sept. 24, 2008.)

We are part of an active organization [the Galactic Federation] that comes under the direction of the White Brotherhood, committed to bringing Light to Earth. (SaLuSa, Nov. 7, 2008.)

While the Sun God guides Mother Earth into Her new and higher position, the Sun God also coordinates this effort with mankind through His chief representative on Earth, the Planetary Logos, Sanat Kumara (also known as "The Ancient of Days"). (1)

Sanat Kumara is thus in charge of guiding mankind, along with other life forms and the angelic realm, through the present transition into the new Golden Era. So Earth's present transition requires the careful coordination between Mother Earth's needs and those of the living creatures She hosts. (Sanctus Germanus Foundation, "Who is in Charge?" at http://tinyurl.com/26q4uuy.)

(1) For more on Sanat Kumara, the "Ancient of Days," see [../../Local%20Settings/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/YWL647PA/pers1.html#sanat1 here].

If you are talking about the full restoration of heart consciousness, of course this is the plan of the Divine Mother. So if you were to think of it in human terms, she is the boss. She is the beginning. She is the end. She is the All.

And so while there are many of us who are involved in this undertaking and process of restoration, understand, it is always in accordance with her Plan, with *the* Plan, and always in accordance with Universal Law.

So nothing that we undertake in her name, or even in the name of Gaia or humanity or any of the councils, is permitted to go forward unless it is in alignment with that overall Plan.

Now, is there room for maneuvering, for manipulation, for adjustment? Yes, of course. And you have witnessed that very clearly in the human decision to go forward as one.

As your planetary logos, I play, I would like to say, a pivotal role, because it is my commitment, my mission, to see this through, to see the transition of humankind and Gaia, of everything upon Gaia, into the higher realm and the restoration of what was always intended. In many ways you can think of it as the closing of the circle, the bringing-back to original intent, before everything went awry or astray.

Now, there are many of what you think of as the mighty archangels, Michael and Gabriel. And as you are now anchoring what you think of as future time, Jophiel and Uriel are very actively involved in this restoration. Raphael has always been involved, because of his mission and purpose for the healing not only of the multiverse but of this planetary situation and the situation of all of humanity.

So needless to say, his undertaking, his work, has been monumental. You have no idea. And I say this in the deepest respect for all of you, my beloved friends and family, because that is what you are; otherwise I would not be doing this, and I would have already moved on to my next mission, which we will discuss at another point. ("Sanat Kumara: Many of You Have Already Ascended and Straddle Dimensions," May 28, 2013, http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/05/sanat-kumara-many-of-you-have-already-ascended-and-straddle-dimensions/.)

What is the Agarthans' contribution?

You have a lot to learn about the truth of things outside your own planet, yet even the Earth has many secrets to share with you. It is known for example that it is hollow and that Beings live inside it, and after Ascension you will meet them.

They are in fact more advanced than you are and will be pleased to share their knowledge with you, and help you advance more quickly than you would have otherwise done. They have followed your progress for eons of time, and are conversant with your needs. They will be of great help in advancing the future of mankind and the Earth, and you are assured that any

sacrifice you make now will be well worth it, as peace will come very soon. (SaLuSa, Aug. 8, 2014.)

Your world is actually two. One is Inner Earth and the home of your Agarthan cousins. They are the last remnant of the colonists that seeded Gaia some 900,000 years ago. At first, they occupied the continent that most of you call Lemuria. Eventually, they moved a part of their colony to inner Earth. It is this latter group that became the last vestige of what Lemuria was about. The Atlanteans attacked and claimed the surface realm for themselves. This eventually led to a simmering conflict, which boiled over some 13 millennia ago. (Sheldan Nidle, May 6, 2014.)

Beneath your feet is a great land known as Agartha. It has been our primary home for centuries. We bless this place and know that soon it is to be your residence as well. You are to be truly at home in this most glorious land. Its crystal cities glow with Light and joy! (The Spiritual Hierarchy and Galactic Federation through Shedlan Nidle, Feb. Feb. 17, 2015.)

The first impression of us, for these various Light groups, was of distrust and a sense of overall fright. These first impressions ended when we turned to the Ascended Masters and the Agarthans for advice.

Our next set of interactions received an entirely different set of reactions. Those individuals who began to have confidence in us forged the courageous policies of the secret sacred societies. Slowly, these various groups of dedicated individuals began to trust us.

After a decade of close workings with many of them, our advice is now honored and the great strides made in the last few years are a direct result of this coalition. We built, moreover, a huge main base next to the Agarthan capitol and began to hold detailed planning sessions there. The grand Council of Agartha and the Ascended Masters attended with many of the leaders of these sacred secret societies.

This rapport was further extended because of the exciting results created by these numerous meetings. We are presently assured that our main divine purpose to come here is being honored and its success is leading to your full liberation from your former masters, the dark cabal. We fully expect to see many miraculous things begin shortly. (Sheldan Nidle, April 26, 2016.)

What galactics are here?

We include many races and some of those races are very closely related - sort of brothers and sisters of the same original parent race. Some you might recognize are us Pleiadians, the Sirians, the Arcturans, the Andromedans and those from Procyon, Aldebaran and Deneb.

These are names I can place in my young friend's mind at this time. There are others [I cannot]. Also others from outside of this galaxy are here. And ones who are far above such consideration as 'galactic neighbourhood' or even which universe you are from. (Adamu, "Adamu Speaks," 7 Sept. 2008, at http://book-of-light.com/forums2/viewtopic.php?f=43&t=81.)

You will find that many different types of Beings from other civilizations work side by side for the Galactic Federation of Light. We enjoy the knowledge and differences that other Extraterrestrials bring with them that we can all share. Sharing is the operative word that expresses everything that we do, and it is done for the good of all. (SaLuSa, Nov. 14, 2012.)

There are so many extraterrestrial world cultures supporting your growth now. They have supported the evolution of your world's development from the beginning. ("The Pleiadian Light: Disclosure Update, 2013," April 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/04/the-pleiadian-light-disclosure-update-2013/.)

Everybody is collaborating. No, not by memo, but telepathically, energetically. It is like the finest ballet, or the sweetest orchestra. The symphony is heard throughout the universe. And when there is a single discordant note — and normally that comes from humanity — it is addressed immediately. ("Archangel Michael: We are All Aligned with the Heart, Mind and Will of One," Jan. 25, 2014, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/01/25/archangel-michael-we-are-all-aligned-with-the-heart-mind-and-will-of-one/.)

What is their mission?

Nothing will be allowed to interfere with your Ascension. We are here to see that all proceeds as divinely planned, and it will not be much longer before you shall know the details. (SaLuSa, Aug. 19, 2011.)

Bear in mind we are dealing with the future of planets and their civilizations, just as we are with you. It is a great responsibility and care must be taken when decisions are made. (SaLuSa, April 16, 2010.)

There are billions of Galactics surrounding your planet providing assistance, protection, technology, who are ready for divine intervention if necessary. ("A Message from Mira from the Pleiadian High Council through Valerie Donner, December 5, 2017." at http://goldenageofgaia.com/?p=291215.)

Accommodating Gaia's desire and her body's immediate need to start ridding itself of negativity required a massive amount of light, and God authorized powerful civilizations to provide it. (Matthew's Message, Oct. 19, 2014.)

Whom do the galactics report to?

We serve the higher forces. (SaLuSa, March 18, 2009.)

We too are supported by great Beings of Light that dwell in the realms of pure Light. (SaLuSa, March 18, 2009.)

Our intervention has been authorized by the High Councils that look after your evolution. ...

We of the Galactic Federation will present you with the opportunity to meet representatives of the civilizations that have had a great input where your evolution has been concerned.

It goes back thousands upon thousands of years, through many cycles that have seen civilizations come and go, some of which you have little or no knowledge of. (SaLuSa, April 13, 2012.)

The Galactic Federation members are the Creator's representatives and dutifully carry out instructions in the highest concept of Light that they can. (Diane of Sirius, Apr. 10, 2009.)

The Galactic Federation works with the Higher Beings, and all along have been authorized to accompany you through this cycle, as others have done before. We are your link to God, and carry out our mission with great love and dedication. (SaLuSa, July 12, 2010.)

Will the Earth be largely destroyed? Or are you protecting us from a cataclysm like that?

The Earth will not be largely destroyed as some predict. It will not be hit by a comet or any other missile, and we will deal with any such threat. Yes, there are the inevitable physical changes that have already been taking place for some time now, but we monitor them. (SaLuSa, Aug. 8, 2011.)

It is true that the Earth must be cleansed and that physical changes will take place, but they will not be of the scale to destroy large areas. We monitor such changes and we use our technologies to lessen the impact upon you. (SaLuSa, July 4, 2011.)

Let me be quite clear that the Earth will not be destroyed, and there will be no mass deaths that will decimate the population. This is where the Galactic Federation comes in as your guardians and protectors, a responsibility that has been theirs for many thousands of years. Our presence is your assurance that there will no major destruction in your time, beyond that which Mother Earth sees as necessary to cleanse the planet. We are here to see you safely ascend, and with as little inconvenience as possible. You will understand better when the time soon arrives, and through open contact we can talk with you about the plans for Earth and its survival. (Ker-On, July 6, 2009.)

In addition to beaming light to the planet, which will continue until it is well within fourth density, various civilizations are using their technologies in a number of ways in accordance with Earth's desires.

For instance, when the Illuminati cause a geophysical event, the crews lay down an electromagnetic grid that distributes earthquake or volcanic activity and lessens destruction and death toll without reducing the amount of negativity released by those events.

In the case of Illuminati-created weather, the crews decrease the wind velocity of violent storms and steer them away from heavily populated areas along coastlines. [Note: That information was transmitted prior to the removal of weather-manipulating scientists by space family members living among you. Mother Nature is back in control of storms, earthquakes and wildfires, her means of releasing negativity.] (Matthew's Message, Nov. 22, 2013.)

We are not warriors. We are more engineering minds. Our energy has been helping to stabilize the planet and hold steady its orbit through areas where other heavenly bodies could seriously affect orbiting stability. We harness, or level out, the effects of what you call "natural disasters" to prevent the widespread destruction that otherwise would occur.

We withdraw force from the energy fomenting beneath the surface that would produce volcanic eruptions of such magnitude they would blow up entire mountains and destroy surrounding towns. We stabilize fault lines so earthquakes are less severe - they still release energy, but do not destroy the vast areas they could without our softening interference.

We quiet the seas and temper the wind forces so you don't have the extent of hurricanes, cyclones and tornadoes and flooded coastal areas that you would if we did not do this. We alter the course of celestial fragments within impact distance of Earth. We keep a rhythm going that is required of all your life forces. Are these examples clear as to our cleansing participation? ("Lazarus" in Matthew's Message, Aug. 20, 2009.)

How will you keep tabs on deep-state members?

There are no activities of theirs that can be hidden by them, as they are tracked wherever they try to hide. (Mike Quinsey, Jan. 28, 2016.)

Nothing escapes our notice, and there are no hiding places that the Illuminati and their minions can use to avoid their fate. (SaLuSa, Feb. 20, 2012.)

When we need to we can zoom in on any person, wherever they are, so there is no hiding place for the dark Ones. When it is time to bring them in we shall waste no time in placing them where they can no longer obstruct the process of Ascension. (SaLuSa, Sept. 21, 2012.)

There is no necessity to fear them any longer, as they are so closely monitored that nothing they do or plan can happen secretly any longer. They have trapped themselves in the very situation they planned for the Human Race and cannot now escape justice for the crimes they have committed. (Mike Quinsey, Feb. 26, 2016.)

We are fully engaged in keeping the dark Ones in check as they try to make their last attempts to disrupt our plan. We are always one step ahead of them and know when they are planning to create havoc. (SaLuSa, Feb. 27, 2015.)

Our advantage is that we have always had knowledge of the plans of the dark Ones. It does not mean that we can necessarily interfere with their freewill, but we can take preventative actions to ensure our plan goes ahead. (SaLuSa, Jan. 22, 2010.)

How do we know the cabal won't start a war?

The New World Order will not be allowed to take advantage of any situation that might lead to [war], as we can in any event disable weapons if we so wish. (SaLuSa, March 9, 2012.)

Our mission has recently changed from passive roles to ones that directly engage the dark forces, and we are enforcing the edict given to your military authorities that the use of nuclear weapons is not going to be allowed. (SaLuSa, April 16, 2012.)

Some people wonder how the armed forces will react, and we must tell you that the majority are ready to lay down their arms and become the true protectors of Mankind as originally intended. No longer will they put their lives on the line fighting false wars and instead they will act to maintain peace throughout the world.

Weapons as such will not be used against the people, and a day will come when they will no longer be needed. We know where the hidden facilities are and they will be destroyed to ensure they are never used again. Indeed, we have already commenced closing down underground bases, and are disarming the dark Ones as quickly as possible.

Bear in mind our actions are carried out in such a way that there is no loss of life. We can "remove" people quite easily and deposit them wherever we choose, and often it is off-planet. We re-educate those who indulge in killing and violence, so that they may return to Earth as useful citizens. (SaLuSa, June 25, 2012.)

What is the contribution of the galactic boots-on-the-ground?

All of our universal family who have been helping you are way-showers, not over-takers.

Many thousands are living right there with you, working alongside you. They have adapted an appearance that looks no different from you, and their superior intelligence and highly-developed skills have given them entry into fields where darkness held sway.

Some work quietly researching and documenting the truth that the darkness has kept hidden from you, and others - you call them whistleblowers - tell the truth to the world.

Others are initiating or influencing reforms in such diverse areas as governing, economic and legal systems, energy, transportation, healthcare, sports, education, mining, logging, agriculture, computer technology, species preservation, the media, scientific research and metallurgy.

A few are in the entertainment field, and even though you regard them as such, their feats that amaze you stir thoughts about what underlies their extraordinary abilities. They exemplify what you, too, can do when you expand spiritual and conscious awareness.

Many brothers and sisters came from other worlds to befriend, enlighten, guide and inspire the individuals who share with them the same ancestry civilizations.

The protection of invisibility by "cloaking" or an impenetrable shield of Christed Light is given to people whose lives are at risk at the hands of Illuminati henchmen.

None of the highly publicized "feared" pandemics occurred because family members working in your laboratories neutralized the toxins in vaccines that were designed to cause illness and death. (Matthew's Message, Nov. 20, 2012.)

What is the contribution of the Earth Allies?

The Earth allies arise out of ancient secret societies dedicated to the Light and gain coherence from the deep yearning of many influential individuals who are children of the major darkminion families. All these ones are committed to bringing you a new reality. They have linked with us to further these goals, which now include the return to full consciousness. (Sheldan Nidle, Aug. 31, 2010.)

When we speak of our allies we generally refer to those who are Lightworkers, at the front of activities that are occurring with our backing.

They are the ones who are preparing the way for the greater advancement of our programs, that are restoring your sovereignty and opening up the way to Ascension. (SaLuSa, April 16, 2012.)

Some members [of the United States government] are participating in an international effort to expose and hold accountable the people behind slavery and pedophile rings; illegal drug trade; manipulation of the global economy via control of lending institutions, taxes and stock markets; control of mainstream media; influence in governments, religion, education and the entertainment field; theft of monies on a grand scale, some of which funds terrorist groups; and instigating upheavals around the world. In short, uprooting the Illuminati and their minions.

Whenever a glimmer of truth about any of those nefarious activities has come to light, the Illuminati have labeled it "conspiracy theory," a term devised to consign that information to the trash heap, thereby keeping intact their elaborate web of deceit. Now that the web is fast unraveling and many arrests have been made, the Illuminati will keep falling like a row of dominoes. (Matthew's Message, Jan. 14, 2018.)

Our tasks are looking a lot easier now that the dark Ones are no longer the power they were. The work of our allies has been extremely successful in breaking down their power structure, and they no longer command such large forces as previously. In fact their capitulation has taken place in all but name, and we await their final admission of defeat. So whatever news you hear do not fear the consequences as we are in control. and short of minor irritations we will not allow our efforts to be interfered with. (SaLuSa, June 22, 2012.)

Our allies are being bold and you are seeing more evidence of their work to bring out the truth, and to put in action the long overdue plan to clear out the dark Ones. It shall continue and become more widespread and it is revealing to us who amongst you are still under their influence. It is fear and favour that keeps others under their control, and we are intent on changing such situations. (SaLuSa, July 16, 2012.)

Our allies are gaining more confidence in confronting those who are against Ascension and would stop its progress. The power is now with them and their demands for an end to covert actions are soon to bear fruit. The issue may have to be forced through, and they are fully prepared for all situations.

Our allies are now to be found in every country, and it is an organisation that now wields immense power. Both Disclosure and First Contact are being are being pushed forward to achieve the final thrust that will bring them into being. Be assured that we are doing all we can to cross that last bridge that will bring victory. (SaLuSa, Aug. 17, 2011.)

We are quite proud of those who are in our various secret societies. The dark has long thought it impossible to bring them down. In the great financial fall of the late first decade of this century, not one of the dark's leading banking executives was touched, despite the degree of criminal fraud involved.

Their arrogance is now a thing of the past. The Light has reached a point where any large incident is to be treated with arrests, seizure of funds and a general degree of moral contempt. It is as well the moment when a number of key fund transfers can at last happen. (Sheldan Nidle, January 26, 2016.)

The old and the new are to some extent running side by side, and our allies are ready to take a quantum leap forward when advised. With our worldwide knowledge of what is happening, it will ensure their success once they have moved into action. (SaLuSa, Jan. 22, 2010.)

Many volunteers have frequently come to Earth to assist in its preparation for Ascension. Presently there are thousands upon thousands working as our allies, and they do not necessarily know of their origin. (SaLuSa, Jan. 22, 2010.)

What is the contribution of the light workers?

The tasks in hand have been made easier through the wonderful work of the Lightworkers....

What is heartening is the way many groups of Light have been formed and are transmuting the dark energies. As a collective of the number of groups that cover the planet, it is becoming a formidable force to be reckoned with. (SaLuSa, Nov. 7, 2012.)

Now, there is what we will call the freedom group and you are seeing this all over your planet, those who are clearly declaring, claiming, demanding their freedom and those who are doing it on a much subtler level. ("Transcript: Sanat Kumara on the Changes Happening to Us, An Hour With an Angel," January 26, 2017, at http://gaog.wpengine.com/2017/02/05/transcript-sanat-kumara-changes-happening-us-hour-angel-january-26-2017/.)

As lies are exposed, more lies are being told, and those will be exposed too. Tyrannical regimes must and shall change. Although plans are afoot for this peaceful revolution through a joint effort between your civilization and many of your space family, that does not absolve any of you who desire a finer, brighter world from the responsibility of helping to create it. You all chose to be where you are at this time precisely so you could do exactly that! Actually, some of you embodied in other lifetimes as great leaders on Earth and well beyond, and you are back now to take on similar insp

In essence every Lightworker, unknowingly or not, is part of the Divine Plan, ensuring that it is successful. (SaLuSa, April 16, 2012.)

This is why you came. To be warriors of Light in these times. (The Galactic Federation of Light through Blossom Goodchild, Jan. 6, 2018, at http://inteldinarchronicles.blogspot.ca/2018/01/blossom-goodchild-message-for-january-6.html.)

Archangel Michael: Does the conversation expand organically and naturally? Does the energy go out to the entire planet, those who want to hear and those who don't want to hear? Yes, it does. But it begins with the lightworker community. That is what we have need of.

Steve Beckow: I suppose then more and more people join the lightworker community?

AAM: Exactly, until it is one family and one path. ("Archangel Michael: A Global Reset of Values, Part 2/2," channeled by Linda Dillon, September 16, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/09/archangel-michael-a-global-reset-of-values-part-22/.)

The View Looking Forward

What are we witnessing in these turbulent times?

Know that what you are witnessing in these turbulent times is the emerging of old energies long suppressed and hidden in need of exposure in order to be observed, evaluated, and changed. (Arcturian Group, Oct. 23, 2016.)

We would strongly advise you to... back away from the chaos and the drama. Do not be the active participant. It can only distract you. This is massive distraction and so many are engaging in the blame-fault-shame-guilt game and that is of the old third. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Nov. 5, 2016.)

Much is happening on Earth at this time as the outworking of karma has brought old disputes to the forefront. These have to be cleared and a position created where opposing forces can once again come together. This reasoning can also be applied to individual karma and many souls have much to handle that may in some instances go back several lives. (Mike Quinsey, Sept. 2, 2016.)

Is the entire political system corrupt?

There is a great belief that the American political system is entirely corrupt, dark, dishonest, you name all the negative qualities and have been applied. You cannot apply that to the entire system.

The system itself may be antiquated and corrupt but that does not mean that every individual that is participating, is corrupt or evil. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Sept. 23, 2016.)

How will the separation between those able and those unable to ascend come about?

The world is slipping into two realities, and the division will take place in accordance with the Law of Attraction. (SaLuSa, Sept. 7, 2009.)

We see the divide on Earth becoming wider between those of the Light and those who are still held back by the lower energies." (SaLuSa, Oct. 3, 2012.)

Life on your present Earth is coming to an end and of necessity, because the cycle of duality has all but completed its course. Nothing stands still and all is in motion and change to take up a new position according to its vibration. Separation of the souls on Earth is therefore quite a natural occurrence, as the Law of Attraction is always in action.

Do not worry about anyone's path as all are destined to follow one that has already been planned. You will all find yourselves in the right place to continue your evolution. Think not of losing your contact with those you love, as there will always be one with them wherever they are. In the higher dimensions, time and distance are no barrier to travel or communication. (SaLuSa, Nov. 5, 2012.)

You of the Light are on your way up and soon will reach the point of change where you leave the old energies behind for good, and enjoy the fruits of your progress. (Mike Quinsey, Sept. 30, 2016.)

If you can find balance and harmony in your life now, we would say that you are already living from a higher state of consciousness. Is it then no wonder that you feel different to many people around you, and find their ways no longer acceptable? It is a sign of the separation that is occurring at the present time and it is a perfectly normal development. (SaLuSa, May 31, 2010.)

How do you wish us to relate to the Illuminati or deep state?

It is painful for a being that seeks power for themselves or power over another, whether it is a parent over a child, a husband over a wife, a man over an army. It matters not. The yearning [for], the exercise of control never gives joy. The pain simply grows. And so the actions become more grotesque, larger, until the breakdown is and has [been] and will be occurring. ("Transcript ~ The Divine Mother: Take Up Your Divine Authority, AHWAA, February 23, 2017," February 28, 2017 at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/02/28/transcript-divine-mother-take-divine-authority-ahwaa-february-23-2017/.)

We wish you to concentrate on the future and seek first to maintain the Light upon Earth, without wasting your energy by directing your anger at the Illuminati and their minions. These will be hard times for anyone who has recently lost loved ones or friends as a result of their actions. It will however be a test of your ability to stay within the Light and show your strength by forgiving those responsible.

If you do not do so and seek any form of revenge you end up little better than what they are and you form a link of energy with them. They may not deserve much sympathy, but see them as souls who have gone badly astray and almost lost their spark of Light.

It will take a lot of Light to raise them up again but it can be done. We feel sure you will see that it is far better to lift the fallen up again than compound their situation by linking them to more negative energy.

All of you have experienced stages where you have gone against the Light. However, with few exceptions you have understood the reasons that brought it about, and stand today as examples of those who have overcome the challenges of duality. You are all the stronger for it and that is indeed the reason you elected to spend many lives in the lower dimensions. (SaLuSa, June 20, 2012.)

Once the media commence reporting the arrests that are already underway that include many public figures, there will be calls for retribution. We do however ask that everyone avoids their emotions running away with them, as we assure you justice will be seen to be done. Unlike earlier times, no one will be able to cheat justice or buy their way out of it. (SaLuSa, May 11, 2012.)

Now that this time of Shift is upon you in ways that you have not previously, perhaps, envisioned in such a clear manner, we ask for you not to join in any way, shape or form in judgment or relishing what is happening to another, for that cannot be of love. So yes, there is divine justice, and there is an absolute balancing that is taking place. And we want you to understand that, as it is taking place on Earth, upon your beloved Gaia, that those ripple effects are felt throughout the Universe, that that rebalancing is taking place far further than any of you can even imagine.

But the key to that amplification effect is for you to hold love, is for you to hold peace. You do not stand as judge and jury, my friends. You do not stand as judge and jury of your children, of your family, of your friends, of your neighbors - not of anyone. Do we sometimes pick someone up and say, "No, you are not permitted to continue in this manner any longer?" Of course we do! That is my job. And that is your job, as you work with me.

But we do not fall into that old human paradigm of old Earth and say, "Now we will punish you. We will judge you. We will seek retribution." No. That is not loving. That is not kind. That is not gentle. Retribution comes in the rebalancing. It comes in the brilliant light of a new dawn. It comes in you stepping forward and assuming your rightful place, as light-holders and showers of the way. It is its own reward.

So during this time of what we have spoken of as incredible change and shift, as you collectively and individually are making peace with old Earth, with the Third Dimension, with all the old ways that have shackled you, that have barred you, do you wish to stay and continue that conversation? Or do you wish to ascend with us to a new reality where co-creation of the new is truly the focus and the watchword?

I ask you, we all ask you - for you are our beloved family; yes, a family of billions, it is an extended family - we ask you to join us in the new. And in the new there is no place for fault or blame or guilt. That does not mean, my brothers and sisters, that there is not room for acknowledgment and responsibility, for that is the bedrock. For when there is self-responsibility and mutuality, then there is joint responsibility and there is not an exercise of greed, of taking, of usurping power, for that power is already there. It is within you.

And so, as you see those who have tried and succeeded in many ways to control - and I could go down a list, but why would I wish to do that? - as you see that happening, feel the compassion - not sympathy, compassion - understanding about fallen angels and lost souls, and send them

love. Send them forgiveness. And then begin with me - with all of us, with the Company of Heaven and far beyond, with your brothers and sisters from the stars - and let us build anew, because that is what this transition is about.

The old can only drag you down. Do not go there. My mission of peace has just begun, and I have need of you. You have travelled with me forever, in faith and trust and hope. So now you see the fulfillment of what we have talked about, the crumbling, the elimination, and yes, the destruction of the old. But let it go, and come with me, for there is further yet to go. (Archangel Michael, An Hour with an Angel, March 5, 2012, at http://the2012scenario.com/2012/03/an-hour-with-an-angel-with-archangel-michael-march-5-2012/.)

However, this is not a time for condemnation and punishment, because those who have abused you, and who have abused your trust in them are, themselves, very severely damaged souls who need your compassion.

Not to offer it is basically an attempt to replace them with others who are apparently of the Light and who will judge and condemn them to the delighted cries of the masses, and in so doing take their places. If this happens their Light will fade rapidly as the power they suddenly find themselves holding corrupts them absolutely. But that will not happen.

The way forwards, as always, is in Love. Anything that is not in perfect alignment with Love is unreal, corrupting, and corruptible. As the old order falls, rejoice, but do not attempt to replace it, no matter how seductive and enlightened the offered replacements appear to be. (Jesus via John Smallman, Nov. 22, 2014.)

Resist the temptation to add more negative energy to world conditions, but instead consciously allow love to flow to them regardless of what you are seeing. Love is all there is and is therefore the key to and the glue of every solution. Outer conditions are quickly lifting many into the realization that love is the only power and thus the only solution to every situation. Many who never before considered love beyond the human sense of it are awakening. (Arcturian Group, Jan. 29, 2017.)

What so many souls have termed "accountability" in regards to those who've perpetrated acts of injustice upon your general collective is indeed to come about. However, it's not to come about in the manner so many Earthly souls would expect.

We wish for humanity to bring-about exposure of the cabals as you've termed them, with no condemnation or judgment for their actions against you.

We wish for forgiveness to be found in the awakening humanity, as the souls we speak of are dearly lost along their paths and deserve the same opportunity as anyone else to re-find the Light they'd so willingly turned themselves away from. ("Archangel Indriel: Perfection Lives Within," channeled by Wes Annac, July 8, 2013 at http://aquariusparadigm.com.)

How are the rising light levels affecting the planet?

Serious unrest in the world will ease as the planet continues its course into higher energy planes. (Matthew's Message, Aug. 11, 2011.)

Light transforms bodies' carbon-based cells into the crystalline structure that can survive in vibratory levels that eventually Earth would reach. (Matthew's Message, Oct. 19, 2014.)

The millennia of dark control are ending because the intensifying light is undergirding the peoples' desire and will to live in a peaceful world where leaders are honorable, laws are just, diversity is respected and everyone shares in the abundance.

Except for the few who attempt to launch nuclear warheads, Creator's gift of free will to every soul takes precedence over all else. It is the collective free will of Earth's peoples that is creating in linear time the fullness of the Golden Age that already is flourishing in the continuum, and you, dear brothers and sisters, are there to be in the vanguard of this evolutionary journey that the peoples have undertaken. (Matthew's Message, Feb. 6, 2017.)

The infusion of many of the energies, but particularly the rapidity of the Porlana C, is deeply influencing everybody, including, and significantly, this [dark] group. ("Transcript: Sanat Kumara on the Changes Happening to Us, An Hour With an Angel," January 26, 2017, at http://gaog.wpengine.com/2017/02/05/transcript-sanat-kumara-changes-happening-us-hour-angel-january-26-2017/.)

Fits and starts and occasional detours along the path of progress will be evident a while longer, but pockets of opposition will become fewer as vibrations cannot long support anything with dark intent. It won't happen overnight, but ultimately only people acting in consonance with the light and light-based activities will prevail. (Matthew's Message, Feb. 6, 2017.)

As you might expect, there are Councils in the higher dimensions that control the degree to which the various rays of Light are beamed to Earth. It is a process of upliftment that gradually increases the level of vibration in your dimension. It is calculated to bring about an increase in the levels of mass consciousness, in a way that is acceptable to you and able to be drawn upon.

To increase the levels too quickly would cause discomfort to those who were ill prepared for it. The object is to return as many of you as possible to the Light, and able to be uplifted through Ascension. So you will understand that there is a grand plan being worked out, supported by great Beings of Light. (SaLuSa, April 1, 2009.)

When will peace come?

People worldwide are hungering for peace. The energy of their collective desires has gained unstoppable momentum over the energy of conquest, and battlefield action will wind down incrementally. (Matthew's Message, July 27, 2008.)

There are some that are still recalcitrant and some who are resistant and some who would like to still have human control in the meaning of the old way. Now that transition is already underway but it is not complete. So what we anticipate is it will be a year or two before that type of attitude

completely fades away. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, March 23, 2016.)

Certainly you will be able to progress far more quickly now that the Illuminati have had their power severely reduced. So much so that they can no longer succeed in their plan to control the population of Earth and reduce their status to one of slaves. So you can go ahead with your plan for this lifetime, knowing that you have a marvellous opportunity to succeed. (SaLuSa, Aug. 21, 2015.)

The Light upon Earth increases and the path to Ascension becomes stronger. It is quickly bringing peace to a troubled world that would otherwise be in complete turmoil. Where there are trouble spots you are seeing the last vestiges of the effect of centuries of negative vibrations. It takes time to remove them but you are winning the battle. There is far more love being sent to them than ever before, and it is helping to cleanse such areas. It will be completed when total peace comes to the Earth, and we will carry out the final cleansing. (SaLuSa, June 6, 2012.)

In villages and towns, cities and metropolises worldwide, the energy of the populace is breaking down unjust systems that have been making the wealthy wealthier and the poor poorer, and there is growing impatience to accomplish profound changes. This, too, is in response to the higher vibrations of intensifying light, and so is the desire for peace that underlies the growing discord even within military personnel.

All actions and reactions are being accentuated in accordance with the energy acceleration, which you perceive as time passing faster and faster, and the wrangling and bickering over issues will evolve into unity of larger purpose as Earth continues approaching her Golden Age. (Matthew's Message, Dec. 17, 2009.)

Very soon the many delayed projects that will lift up the Earth can commence and bring into being the welcome changes that are going to take you full speed into the New Age. (Mike Quinsey, Sept. 16, 2016.)